
 1

MINUTES 
ST. JOHNSBURY SELECTBOARD 

MONDAY, APRIL 28, 2008 
 
The St. Johnsbury SelectBoard held their Regular SelectBoard meeting on Monday, April 
28, 2008 beginning at 7:00p.m. in the Board Room of the Municipal Building. 
 
SelectBoard Members Present: Chairperson Bryon Quatrini, Gary Reis, Jean Hall 
Wheeler, and Jim Rust. 
 
SelectBoard Members Excused: Daniel Kimbell 
 
Others Present: Gary Lunderville, Mary Lunderville, Richard Leighton, Sandy Grenier, 
Paul Denton, Diane Beck, Bernie Timson, Taylor Reed, Priscilla Messier, Bradley Reed, 
KATV-7, and Mike Welch. 
 
MINUTES – APRIL 14, 2008 – The Manager stated that he had not completed the 
Minutes from the Meeting held on April 14, 2008. The Board tabled action on the 
Minutes. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT – Chairperson Bryon Quatrini asked for comments from the 
public on any items not appearing on the Agenda. There were no comments. 
 
LABOR RELATIONS AGREEMENTS WITH EMPLOYEES – The Manager 
informed the Board that the Town and the Labor Unions (Police, Public Works, and 
Firefighters) have reached tentative agreements. The Manager stated that the labor units 
have approved the tentative agreements. The Manager said that Bryon Quatrini and Dale 
Urie were involved in most of the negotiations, and Daniel Kimbell participated in the 
last session with Public Works and Police. The Manager said that the terms of the 
agreements are: 
 
 Firefighters – Three Year Agreement – Wages 3%, 3.5%, 3.5%. Employees will 
pay more toward Health insurance 11%, 12%, and 14% in final year. Employees will 
contribute toward pension – 1% of base wage in 2009, and 2% of base wage in 2010. 
 
 Public Works and Police – One Year Agreement  - Wages 3.5%, Employees will 
contribute 11% toward Health Insurance – both retroactive to 1/1/08. Negotiations will 
continue for next agreement. 
 
Following discussion, it was moved by Gary Reis, seconded by Jean Hall Wheeler, and 
voted (4-0) to approve and sign the labor relations agreements as presented for Public 
Works, Police, and Firefighters. 
 
The Manager proposed that Non-Union employees be given the same adjustment, and 
pay the same rate for health insurance as the Police and Public Works Contracts 3.5% 
increase, and 11% toward Health insurance retroactive to January 1, 2008. It was moved 



 2

by Gary Reis, and seconded by Jim Rust, and voted (4-0) that non-union employees 
receive an adjustment of 3.5%, and pay an additional 1% on health insurance effective 
January 1, 2008. 
 
NE KINGDOM COMMUNITY ACTION – PAUL DENTON – Paul Denton was 
present to inform the Board that NEKCA has a purchase option in the lease for the former 
Lincoln Street School building. Mr. Denton informed the Board that NEKCA would like 
to purchase the property from Mr. Impey so that they can make energy efficiency and 
other improvements to the property. Mr. Denton said that NEKCA would be eligible for 
grants and low interest loans to make the improvements that would not be available to a 
private developer. Mr. Denton said that he would like to request that the SelectBoard sign 
an acknowledgement for USDA that will allow NEKCA to apply for a facility loan and 
grant. Paul Denton said that the lot would be subdivided, and much of the land would be 
retained by Mr. Impey. Paul Denton said that NEKCA would be interested in working out 
a tax stabilization agreement with the Town to make a payment in lieu of taxes for the 
municipal portion of the property tax. The Town Manager stated that the 2007 Municipal 
property taxes on the entire property were $3,423.77. 
 
Following discussion, it was moved by Gary Reis, seconded by Jean Hall Wheeler, and 
voted (3-1 Jim Rust opposed) to approve and sign a USDA authorization to allow 
NEKCA to apply for grants and loans for the acquisition and repairs of the former 
Lincoln Street School. 
 
GARY LUNDERVILLE – MOOSE RIVER CAMPGROUND – Jim Rust informed 
the Board members that he was recusing himself from discussion and action on this 
agenda item. Gary and Mary Lunderville were present to request that the Town adjust 
their water bill. Mary said that their reading in February, 2008 was 267,000 gallons in a 
quarter – when there were only two people using the water. Gary Lunderville reported 
that there was a break at the connection to his water system for the campground – after 
the meter – and water was leaking from this location. Gary said that he would have had 
no reason to inspect this connection or to get into the Town’s meter pit to investigate. 
Gary stated that he has no way to read his meter – as the meter is located in a meter pit, 
and he has no access. Mary Lunderville said that the Town has now been reading the 
meter on a monthly basis, and meter readings are normal for no activity in the 
campground. Gary Lunderville stated that he contacted Thomas Lewis at the State of 
Vermont and Mr. Lewis said that the State may have damaged the line when doing 
construction in the area. Gary Lunderville told the Board that Mr. Lewis said that Mr. 
Lunderville should not be in the meter pit or taking the cover off the meter pit. According 
to Mr. Lunderville, Mr. Lewis also said that the Town had no business doing any work in 
the State Right-of-Way without a permit. Mary Lunderville told the Board that they are 
only looking for an adjustment on the last bill. The Manager stated that the Grievance 
Committee (Bryon Quatrini and Jean Hall Wheeler) had reviewed this case, and had 
determined that the Lundervilles did not have to pay the higher Fixed Rate Charges – but 
should pay the usage rate for the water that went through the meter. Bryon said that the 
Committee has always tried to be very consistent in their decisions, so that all customers 
are being treated fairly. The Manager informed the Board that when people do express 



 3

concerns about high water volume – the first advice given by the Town is to check for 
leaks. One of the ways to check for leaks is to monitor the meter readings when water is 
not being used. The Manager stated that Mr. Lunderville’s case in somewhat unique in 
that he has no way to actually read his meter to monitor flow. Mary said that she always 
assumed that a large portion of the bill was the basic charge – regardless of the volume of 
water. Jean Hall Wheeler stated that Mr. Lunderville had reported that he had separated 
the campground from his residence – so that when the campground is not occupied, the 
only water that should be flowing is to the residence. Bryon Quatrini indicated that he 
was not supportive of deviating from the Grievance Committee’s manner of handling 
these type of complaints. Following discussion, the Board agreed to table action on this 
item until Daniel Kimbell was present. 
 
POLICE ACTIVITY REPORT – Chief Richard Leighton was present to provide 
members of the SelectBoard with a report on Police response activity over the past two 
years. Chief Leighton said that calls for service in 2008 are already up over the same 
period last year (1,033 in 2008 to 837 in 2007). Chief Leighton said that there have been 
several recent robberies. Chief Leighton said that it is suspected that many of the 
robberies in the area relate directly to illegal use of drugs. Chief Leighton reported that a 
full-time officer is going to be stationed on patrol in the downtown area throughout the 
summer to try to address the numerous merchant complaints that have been received in 
the past. Chief Leighton said that officers have seen an increase in the use and illegal sale 
of prescription drugs in the area. Jim Rust asked what the Board can do to help. Chief 
Leighton said that if people witness crimes then they need to be willing to come forward 
and make a statement. Without formal statements, the officer’s hands are tied. 
 
RESOLUTION –BAYSTONE FINANCIAL- HIGHWAY EQUIPMENT -  The 
Manager informed the Board that the application for financing of five (5) highway 
vehicles has been prepared, and requires Board formal authorization. The total amount to 
be financed including the trucks and the equipment (bodies, plows) is $ 696,098. This 
will be financed over a five year period. The Manager stated that Ed Zuccaro will be 
issuing a legal opinion relative to the transaction, but requires that the Board approve the 
resolution before issuing his opinion. Ed has reviewed the lease documents. Gary 
Lunderville asked if the vehicles were put out to bid. The Manager stated that they were 
not put out to bid, but the Town of St. Johnsbury was able to “piggyback” off from the 
State Bid for these type of vehicles that was awarded to Clark’s. Gary Lunderville said he 
checked with some other dealers – and he was told that the Town could have saved 
another $90,000 to $100,000. The Manager stated that the Town received the State Bid 
price for the Trucks, and that bodies and plows were put out to bid and awarded to two 
separate vendors. Gary Lunderville asked about trade allowances. The Manager said that 
the Town did not trade the vehicles – but will sell outright, and proceeds go into Town 
Highway Equipment Fund. Gary Lunderville asked why local people were not able to 
purchase the equipment. The Manager said that in the past Larry Gadapee has received 
complaints from individuals who purchased vehicles as is from the Town – and then 
complained because of the problems that were associated with the vehicles. Following 
discussion, it was moved by Gary Reis, seconded by Jean Hall Wheeler, and voted (3-0-1 



 4

– Jim Rust abstained) to approve and sign the Resolution for Baystone Financial relative 
to lease purchase of five (5) Highway Vehicles. 
 
PROCLAMATIONS – The members of the Board approved and signed Resolutions 
recognizing the “Walk-for-Lunch Day” and Arbor Day. The Board agreed to table action 
on the Silver Star request until reviewed by the VFW. 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS: 
 
Building Committee – Gary Reis – reported that the Town had contacted a traffic 
consultant and obtained additional information about traffic control for Hastings Hill and 
Sand Hill intersections. The Committee will meet again to discuss results of these 
findings, and continue discussions about the Hastings Hill site. 
 
Justice Center – Jean Hall Wheeler provided a report to the Board, and indicated that 
members of the Advisory Board would be meeting with the Manager to discuss the 
Town’s relationship with the Center. 
 
Finance – Jim Rust reported that the Committee has been working to develop proposed 
Water/Sewer rates to recommend to the SelectBoard. The Committee is also 
recommending that some type of base housing unit be figured into the billing system so 
that residential apartments units would pay some amount based on the number of actual 
units in the building. Finance will meet again to finalize discussions, and 
recommendations for the full board. 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
Licenses were approved for – CN Brown (Tobacco) and Porter & Craige (Liquor). 
 
Expenditure Warrants – as approved by the Board’s representative were reviewed, 
approved, and signed as follows: 
 
 Grant Fund; 2055-2056  $85,741.21 

2057-2066 $ 6,265.83 
 

General: 
  57664 -57706  $52,951.68 
  57707-57812  $368,836.54 

 
Elwin Cross – The Manager reminded the Board about Citizen of Year Banquet for 
Elwin Cross on May 3rd. 
 
Green-Up Day – Scheduled for Saturday, May 3rd. 
 
Household Hazardous Waste Day – Saturday, May 17th. 
 



 5

 
 
CSO Presentation – Tuesday, May 27th 
 
Union Bank Appeal – Trial Date set for Tuesday, May 6 and Wednesday, May 7th – 
Town has incurred in excess of $10,000 in legal fees. 
 
OTHER BUSINES: 
 
Dialysis – Chairperson Bryon Quatrini commended the Northeastern Vermont Regional 
Hospital for all of their efforts to obtain a dialysis center for this region. Bryon noted that 
BISCHA has approved the Certificate of Need for a private Dialysis Center to be located 
in the former Bloch Building. 
 
Town Service Club Signs – Mary Lunderville volunteered, on behalf of the Lion’s Club, 
to help coordinate the effort to replace the service club signs at the entrance to Town. The 
Manager informed her that Kiwanis and Rotary have both pledged to support the project. 
 
Having no further business or requests, it was moved by Gary Reis, seconded by Jean 
Hall Wheeler, and voted to adjourn at approximately 8:10p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Michael A. Welch 
Town Manager 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 


